
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
       

                                                                                                                                                           

 

 

 

       

       September 4, 2020 

 

Via Email   

Ginny Kremer, Esq. 

Blatman, Bobrowski & Havety LLC 

9 Damonmill Sq. Ste. 4A4 

Concord, MA 01742 

 

Re: August 13, 2020 Public Records Request 

Dear Attorney Kremer:  

I am writing on behalf of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Southborough (the 

“Town”) in response to your August 13, 2020 public records request on behalf of Jack and Louise 

Barron.1 You have requested records from January 1, 2019 to the present.2 

 

Request No. 1: “all separation agreements, settlement agreements, investigative materials, and all 

other records associated therewith that pertain to the separation from Town employment any and 

all employees of the Recreation Department;” 

Response No. 1:   There are no settlement and/or separation agreements responsive to your request.  

Enclosed as Attachment No. 1 is copy of the requested investigative materials. Those 

records have been redacted pursuant to exemption (c) of the Massachusetts Public Records Law 

(“PRL”) which exempts  “personnel and medical files of information; also any other materials or 

data relating to a specifically named individual, the disclosure of which may constitute an invasion 

of privacy.” M.G.L. c. 4, §7(26)(c).  Massachusetts courts have found that this includes "core 

categories of personnel information that are 'useful in making employment decisions regarding an 

 
1 On August 24, 2020, you assented to the Town’s request for an extension of time to respond to your request until 

and including September 7, 2020.  
2 Aside from Request No. 3 below, you have requested the same records, including the April 25, 2019 and May 7, 

2019 executive session meeting minutes, on behalf of Jack and Louise Barron multiple times from the Town.  The 

Town has already provided you with redacted copies of those records and/or explanations as to why those records are 

being withheld from disclosure. You have also unsuccessfully appealed to the Supervisor of Public Records (“SPR”) 

and the Attorney General (“AG”) the Town’s prior responses to your requests for those records.  
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employee’”, including documents related to disciplinary investigations, including promotion, 

demotion, or termination information pertaining to a particular employee. Worcester Telegram & 

Gazette Corp. v. Chief of Police of Worcester, 58 Mass. App. Ct. 1, 5 (2003); Wakefield Teachers 

Association v. School Committee of Wakefield, 431 Mass. 792, 798 (2000).  The investigative 

materials have been redacted pursuant to exemption (c) of the PRL as they contain information 

that is “useful in making employment decisions” and upon which the Board of Selectmen (“BOS” 

or “Board”) relied in a disciplinary proceeding, or constitute the disciplinary action itself. 

Further, the investigative materials are exempt from disclosure under the PRL for privacy 

reasons. M.G.L. c. 4, §7(26)(c). Massachusetts courts consider the following factors when 

assessing the weight of the privacy interest at stake: (1) whether disclosure would result in personal 

embarrassment to an individual of normal sensibilities; (2) whether the materials sought contain 

intimate details of a highly personal nature; and (3) whether the same information is available from 

other sources. See People for the Ethical Treatment of Animals (PETA) v. Dep’t of Agric. Res., 

477 Mass. 280, 292 (2017). This exemption applies to withhold information that would be harmful 

to the reputation of an individual. Id. at 292, n.13. Therefore, disclosing this information would 

violate the employee’s privacy.  

Request No. 2: “all meeting minutes (from any open or executive session), and notes made and 

documents used during any meeting between any and all public officials pertaining to the 

separation from Town employment of any Recreation Department employee.”  

Response No. 2:    Enclosed as Attachment No. 2 is a redacted copy of the April 25, 2019 and May 

7, 2019 BOS executive sessions meeting minutes. On April 25 and May 7, the BOS entered into 

Executive Session, per M.G.L. c. 30A, §21(a) to discuss the discipline and/or dismissal of a 

Recreational Department employee. The BOS did not discuss any documents at those meetings 

and no notes were taken by Board members.  

Those minutes have been redacted pursuant to M.G.L. c. 30A § 22(f) of the Open Meeting 

Law (“OML”), which states, in pertinent part:  

When the purpose for which a valid executive session was held has been 

served, the minutes, preparatory materials and documents and exhibits of 

the session shall be disclosed unless the attorney-client privilege or 1 or 

more of the exemptions under said clause Twenty-sixth of said section 7 of 

said chapter 4 apply to withhold these records, or any portion thereof, from 

disclosure. 

(emphasis added).  While some of the purposes for the April 25 and May 7 executive sessions have 

been served, the attorney-client privilege and exemption (c) of M.G.L c. 4 § 7(26) still apply to 

withhold these records for the reasons set forth below.  

The requested BOS minutes contain confidential communication between Town Labor 

Counsel and the BOS for the purpose of obtaining legal advice regarding a disciplinary matter, 

and, therefore, are exempt from disclosure under the attorney-client privilege. Suffolk Constr. Co. 

v. Div. of Capital Asset Mgmt., 449 Mass. 444, 450 n.9 (2007). 
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The requested BOS minutes are also exempt from disclosure by exemption (c) of the 

Massachusetts Public Records Law (“PRL”) as they contain information pertaining to employee 

discipline.  See M.G.L. c. 4 §7(26)(c) and related cases cited above. Since the BOS met in 

executive session to discuss a disciplinary matter, the minutes are exempt from disclosure as they 

contain information that is “useful in making employment decisions” and upon which the Board 

relied, in addition to the advice of its counsel in making such decisions.  Indeed, the minutes 

comprise the employment decisions made by the Board. 

Further, the requested minutes are exempt from disclosure by exemption (c) of the PRL as 

they contain significant allegations against a Town employee, that, if disclosed, would constitute 

an invasion of privacy. See People for the Ethical Treatment of Animals (PETA) v. Dep’t of Agric. 

Res., 477 Mass. 280, 292 (2017). 

Also enclosed as Attachment No. 2 is a copy of the April 24, 2019 Recreation Commission 

(“Commission”) executive session meeting minutes. On April 24, 2019, the Commission entered 

into Executive Session, per M.G.L., c. 30A, §21(a) to discuss the discipline and/or dismissal of a 

Recreational Department employee. The Commission did not discuss any documents at this 

meeting and no notes were taken by its members. The April 24 meeting minutes have been redacted 

pursuant to M.G.L. c. 30A § 22(f) of the OML. Specifically, exemption (c) of M.G.L c. 4 § 7(26) 

still applies to withhold these records as they contain information personnel information that is 

“useful in making employment decisions” and upon which the Town relied in a disciplinary 

proceeding, and for privacy reasons.  

Request No. 3: “any and all audits, analyses, examinations, reviews, etc., formal or informal, of 

all Recreation Department financial records since 2019;” 

Response No. 3:   Enclosed as Attachment No. 3 is an unredacted copy of the July 8, 2019 

Recreation Department audit report.   

Request No. 4: “all documents supporting the calculation of the sum of $844.88 that was paid to 

the order of ‘Southborough Recreation’ by check dated April 19, 2019, as well as an un-redacted 

copy of that check.”    

Response No. 4:   Enclosed as Attachment No. 4 is a copy of the requested check. The check has 

been redacted pursuant to exemption (c) of the PRL as it contains information that is “useful in 

making employment decisions” and upon which the BOS relied in a disciplinary proceeding. 

Worcester Telegram, 58 Mass. at 5.  It also contains information that is protected from disclosure 

pursuant to exemption (c) of the Massachusetts Public Records Law (“PRL”) for privacy reasons. 

You also have requested for records pertaining to how such payment amount was 

determined. There are no public records in the Town’s possession responsive to this request.  The 

only records that arguably provide such an explanation fall within exemption (c) of the PRL as 

they are part of a disciplinary proceeding against a Town employee. I have provided a redacted 

copy of those records as Attachment No. 5. Those records are exempt from disclosure as they 

contain information that was useful in making an employment decision regarding an employee or 

constitute the disciplinary action itself. 
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In accordance with the Massachusetts Public Records Law, you may file an appeal with 

the Supervisor of Public Records. 

 

 

      Sincerely, 

 

 

      Antoine Fares  

 

 

 

           Antoine Fares








































































































